
 

 

 

 

Meeting: EAP Education, Skills and Employment 

Date: Wednesday 25th August, 2021 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Venue: To be held virtually (Executive Advisory Panels are not subject to the full 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), public meeting requirements 
do not apply. 

 

The meeting will be available for the public to view live at the 
Democratic Services North Northants YouTube channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCcH_JAaHaMtgHDeMQEVXi2g 
 

 
To members of the Executive Advisory Panel for Education, Skills and Employment 
 
Councillors Scott Edwards (Chair), Wendy Brackenbury, Leanne Buckingham, Annabel 
de Capell Brooke, Philip Irwin, Dorothy Maxwell and Lee Wilkes 
 

Agenda 

 

Item Subject Presenting 
Officer 

Page no. 

01   Apologies for absence 
 

  

02   Minutes of the meeting held on 4 August 2021. 
 

 5 - 8 

03   Members' Declarations of Interest 
 

  

04   Corporate Plan Guy Holloway, 
Assistant Chief 
Executive 

To Follow 

05   Safeguarding in Schools - Guidance Update AnnMarie 
Dodds, 
Assistant 
Director - 
Education 

To Follow 

06   Executive Item - Provision of Annex Site to 
Isebrook SEND College 

Cathi Hadley, 
Executive 
Director of 
Children’s 
Services 

9 - 16 

07   Executive Item - School Improvement Works - 
Montsaye Academy 

Cathi Hadley 
Executive 

17 - 30 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCcH_JAaHaMtgHDeMQEVXi2g


 

Director of 
Children’s 
Services 

08   Forward Plan of Executive Items Ben Smith, 
Democratic 
Services 

31 - 36 

09   Forward List of Items for Education, Skills and 
Employment EAP 

Ben Smith, 
Democratic 
Services 

37 - 38 

010   Close of Meeting 
 

  

Adele Wylie, Monitoring Officer 
North Northamptonshire Council 

 
Proper Officer 

19 August 2021 
 

 
This agenda has been published by Democratic Services. 
Committee Officer: Ben Smith 
01832 742113 
ben.smith@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 
Public Participation 
 
Executive Advisory Panels are not subject to the full Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). Public meeting requirements do not apply for these meetings. If you wish to 
attend the meeting, please contact the named Democratic Services Officer or email 
democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Members’ Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are reminded of their duty to ensure they abide by the approved Member Code 
of Conduct whilst undertaking their role as a Councillor.  Where a matter arises at a 
meeting which relates to a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, you must declare the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room 
unless granted a dispensation. 
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to other Registerable Interests, you 
must declare the interest.  You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are 
also allowed to speak at the meeting but must not take part in any vote on the matter 
unless you have been granted a dispensation. 
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to your own financial interest (and is not 
a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) or relates to a financial interest of a relative, friend or 
close associate, you must disclose the interest and not vote on the matter unless granted 
a dispensation.  You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 
allowed to speak at the meeting. 
 

Page 2

mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk


 

Members are reminded that they should continue to adhere to the Council’s approved 
rules and protocols during the conduct of meetings.  These are contained in the Council’s 
approved Constitution. 
 
If Members have any queries as to whether a Declaration of Interest should be made 
please contact the Monitoring Officer at –  monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Press & Media Enquiries 
 
Any press or media enquiries should be directed through the Council’s Communications 
Team to NNU-Comms-Team@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Public Enquiries 
 
Public enquiries regarding the Authority’s  meetings can be made to 
democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 

Page 3

mailto:monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the EAP Education, Skills and Employment 
At 5.00 pm on Wednesday 4th August, 2021 via MS Teams (virtual meeting) 
 
Present:- 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Scott Edwards (Chair)  
Councillor Wendy Brackenbury 
Councillor Annabel de Capell Brooke 
Councillor Philip Irwin 
 

Councillor Dorothy Maxwell 
Councillor Leanne Buckingham 
Councillor Lee Wilkes 
 

 
Officers 
 
Cathi Hadley –  Executive Director, 
 Children’s Services 
Carol Berrevoets – Adult Learning 
 

Ben Smith – Democratic Services 
 

 
9 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 There were no apologies for absence. 

 
10 MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 The Chair invited those who wished to do so to declare interests in respect 

of items on the agenda. 
 
No declarations were received. 
 

11 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 30 JUNE 2021 
 

 RESOLVED that:   
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2021 are a true and accurate 
record of the meeting, subject to corrections to the spelling of the names Cllr 
Philip Irwin and Carol Berrevoets. 
 

12 UPDATE TO TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

 Further to consideration of the terms of reference for Executive Advisory 
Panels as a whole at the first meeting of this Panel, Cathi Hadley – 
Executive Director for Children’s Services introduced additional specific 
wording in relation to the education, Skills and Employment area of activity, 
as follows:- 
 
Education, Skills and Employment – Proposed Addition to the General 
Terms of Reference  
 
The purpose of the EAP is to consider and review any reports on the forward 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



plan for Executive. The Panel will also be kept up to date and informed of 
any significant government policy changes which impacts on service delivery 
and any changes to service provision in LSE. A forward plan will be 
developed to ensure that the Panel have a future plan of items. The forward 
plan will be reviewed at all Panels. 
Ben confirmed policy development in the Constitution. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the additional wording above be added to the terms of reference for the 
Education, Skills and Employment Executive Advisory Panel. 
 

13 FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE ITEMS 
 

 Members considered the latest Executive forward plan of items, dated from 
1 July to 31 October, specifically items relating to Children’s Services. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the forward plan of items be noted. 
 

14 FORWARD LIST OF ITEMS FOR EDUCATION, SKILLS AND 
EMPLOYMENT EAP 
 

 Members considered the latest forward list of items for the Panel. 
 
The Chair informed Cllr Maxwell that he would respond to a question she 
had raised on how many children were home tutored outside of the meeting. 
 
In response to a further question on how many schools were in special 
measures, the Executive Director informed Cllr Maxwell that a report on 
school effectiveness would be brought to the Panel in September 2021, 
which would cover that subject area. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the forward list of Panel items be noted. 
 

15 VARIATION TO THE ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS FOR MAINTAINED 
SCHOOLS FOR 2021/22 AND 2022/23 
 

 The Executive Director introduced  a report on admission arrangements that 
would be considered by the Executive on 5 August 2021, the purpose of 
which was to explain why the School Admission arrangements must be 
varied to comply with the new mandatory requirements of the new School 
Admissions Code (the Code) from September 2021, and to ask the 
Executive to vary the admission arrangements for its schools.  
 
The Chair informed Panel members that he very much welcomed their views 
on this and future Executive reports that would be brought to them for 
consideration in the meetings ahead. 
 
Arising from discussion the following principal points were noted: 

Page 6



 
i. The effective date of September 2021 for the new admission 

arrangements would not have any immediate impact on schools or 
carers as they were all used to working to an admissions code. All 
interested parties were aware of the requirements and had received 
sufficient notice; 
 

ii. The Panel offered its support to the Chair, for it to be a sounding 
board for any further amendments that may be required to the School 
Admissions Code in future, noting the delegated powers that were 
proposed to be given to him; 
 

iii. The reference in the report to children from abroad was in relation to 
children in state care in other countries; it was clarified this did not 
relate to refugees; 
 

iv. A query regarding the provision of support to children who studied 
English as a second language would be responded to Cllr Maxwell 
outside of the meeting, noting it did not directly relate to the item on 
the agenda. 
 

AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

16 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 It was noted that item 9 on the agenda was no longer considered to be 
exempt and that exclusion of the press and public was no longer required. 
 

17 TWO FORM OF ENTRY PRIMARY SCHOOL, STANTON CROSS 
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
 

 The Executive Director introduced a report, the purpose of which was to 
seek approval from the Executive of Section 106 expenditure of £9.66 
million to fund the new two form of entry primary school, located at Stanton 
Cross, Wellingborough.  
 
Arising from discussion the following principal points were noted:- 
 

i. It was queried whether in choosing an academy sponsor for the 
primary school, whether this allowed any body to seek to run a 
school, under Free School regulations. The Director undertook to 
respond outside of the meeting but also confirmed that any final 
decision would lie with central government’s Department for 
Education; 
 

ii. The estimated number of pupils calculated as attending the school in 
future years was undertaken using the Section 106 process; 
 

iii. The admissions process would not just be accessible to children of 
Stanton Cross; 
 

Page 7



iv. Capital funders would ensure compliance of build construction going 
forward which had gone through a Design and Build process, 
meaning that the contractor bore the risk should the cost of building 
works rise above the £9.6m funding available for the school to be 
open by the required date of 1 Sept 2022. 
 

AGREED: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

18 CLOSE OF MEETING 
 

 The Chair thanked members and officers for their attendance, and closed 
the meeting. 
 

 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Chair 

 
___________________________________ 

Date 
 
The meeting closed at 5.50 pm 
 

Page 8



                                    

 

 
 
 

EXECUTIVE  26th AUGUST 2021 
 

 

Key Decision  ☒ Yes    ☐ No 

Forward Plan Reference (if yes to Key Decision)    

Is the decision eligible for call-in by Scrutiny?  ☒ Yes    ☐ No 

Are there public sector equality duty implications?   ☒ Yes    ☐ No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information 
(whether in appendices or not)?  

☐ Yes    ☒ No 

Applicable paragraph number for exemption from publication 
under Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1974  

  

 
 
List of Appendices 
 
No appendices 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide Members with all the necessary 

information to make a fully informed decision on the proposal to fund an annex 
site or ‘Connected Offer’ provision to Isebrook SEND College, Kettering.  

 
2. Executive Summary 

 
2.1 North Northamptonshire Council (NNC) has a statutory obligation of providing a 

sufficiency of school places across all phases of education and in all areas of 
North Northamptonshire; 
 

2.2 The current and forecast demand for secondary SEND places within North 
Northamptonshire means that NNC is currently at risk of failing to meet this 
statutory obligation and that immediate action is required to provide additional 
SEND capacity; 

 

Report Title 
 

Proposal to fund a ‘Connected Offer’ or annex site to 
Isebrook SEND College at the ‘Four Seasons’ building, 
Kettering. 
 

Report Author Chris Wickens, Head of School Place Planning – 
Chris.Wickens@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 

Executive Member Cllr Scott Edwards, Executive Member for Children, 
Families, Education and Skills 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Chris.Wickens@northnorthants.gov.uk


2.3 This report presents a proposal for approval that will assist NNC in fulfilling this 
statutory obligation within the area, through the provision of an annex site or 
‘Connected Offer’ to Isebrook SEND College, that will provide an additional 20 
secondary SEND places from 21/22 onwards; 

 
2.4 The report seeks to establish the reasons that this proposal has been made and 

provide the required evidence to support the reasons for recommendations 
made in section 3.2 of this report., This evidence will include; the demand for 
the new provision, the benefits the ‘Connected Offer’ will provide to students 
that will attend the provision and the financial benefits that will be realised by 
NNC as a result; 

 
2.5 The provision of the ‘Connected Offer’ will cost £531,886 and it is proposed that 

NNC fund this proposal from available and uncommitted ‘SEND Capital Grant’ 
funding received from central government. This funding is ring-fenced 
specifically for the ‘provision of new and improvement of existing SEND places’. 

 
 
3. Recommendations 

 
3.1 It is recommended that the Executive:  

 
a) Note the proposal to establish an annex site or ‘Connected Offer’ provision 

to Isebrook SEND College at the ‘Four Seasons’ building, Kettering by the 
Creating Tomorrow Academy Trust (the Academy Trust that operates 
Isebrook SEND College) 

b) Approve the required expenditure of £481,886 to allow for the progression 
of the proposed scheme and to note that this scheme will be funded via 
SEND Capital Grant funding received directly from central government; 

c) To delegate authority to the Executive Member for Children, Families, 
Education and Skills in consultation with the Executive Director of 
Children’s ServicesE to complete all necessary documentation to ensure 
effective delivery of the scheme. 

 
3.2 Reason for Recommendations: 

 The recommended course of action is the most cost-effective manner of 
providing additional SEND places in the Kettering area of North Northants; 

 The Council and its customers will receive the maximum benefit from the 
option proposed. The proposal will provide a bespoke specialist education 
provision within the area that is not currently available, that is specifically 
designed to meet the individual needs of the cohort of students that will 
attend the new provision; 

 To proposal will assist the Council in fulfilling its statutory obligations of 
providing a sufficiency of SEND places by providing an additional 20 
secondary SEND places in the area. 
 

4. Report Background 
 
4.1 As of September 2021, it is forecast that there will be a deficit of circa 25 primary 

and 135 secondary SEND places in North Northamptonshire as a whole. This 
deficit of places has been calculated by comparing demand withthe total 
capacity provided by the SEND units (attached to mainstream schools) and the 
specialist provision (special schools) located in the area; 

Page 10



 
4.2 This is despite NNC’s predecessor organisation, Northamptonshire County 

Council, providing the following new SEND capacity between 2015 and 2020 in 
the area in which now forms North Northamptonshire; 

 93 new primary places via extensions to existing SEND schools and SEND 
units; 

 111 new secondary places via extensions to existing SEND schools and SEND 
units; 

 The establishment of a new 100 place ‘all-through’ SEND school; 
 
4.3 A new secondary SEND free school is due to open in the East Northants area 

from September 2021, will provide 27 places in its first year of operation (and 
100 new secondary SEND places in total once full). This new school will provide 
much needed new capacity within North Northamptonshire and will assist in 
mitigating against the forecast deficit of secondary SEND places from 
September 2021; 

4.4 However, further new capacity will still be required to help mitigate against the 
forecast deficit of SEND places in North Northamptonshire both now and in the 
future. SEND pupil projection forecasts collated by NNC indicate that the total 
number of children and young people in receipt of an Education Health & Care 
(EHC) Plan is forecast to increase by 520 or 23% in the period 2021 – 2025; 
 

4.5 The proposal to establish an annex site or ‘Connected Offer’ to Isebrook SEND 
College will provide an initial 10 new places for the 2021/22 academic year and 
a total of 20 places from the 2022/23 academic year onwards; 

 
4.6 As well as providing much needed additional new capacity to assist in meeting 

demand in North Northamptonshire, the ‘Connected Offer’ will also meet the 
needs of a new and growing cohort of circa 20 students within the area. The 
students that the proposed new provision will cater for have a primary SEND 
need of ‘Social, Emotional & Mental Health (SEMH) and can be categorised as 
‘anxious school refusers’ who are of average or above average ability; 

 
4.7 This proposal is the result of a collaboration between Officers within the EHC 

team at NNC and the Creating Tomorrow Academy Trust. It has been 
specifically designed to provide both bespoke accommodation and a bespoke 
method of curriculum delivery that are tailored to meet the individual needs of 
the students that will attend it. The new provision is expected to significantly 
improve both the attainment levels achieved by this cohort of students and 
positively impact their future life chances as a result; 

 
4.8 Should NNC be unable to place a child or young person in receipt of an EHC 

Plan within a SEND unit or specialist provision within its maintained or academy 
estate, NNC will be legally required to secure a place in an independent or out 
of county provision to ensure it continues to fulfil its statutory obligations in this 
respect. Places in independent or out of county provisions are significantly more 
costly than those in NNC’s maintained and academy SEND estate, and the 
utilisation of these places represent a significant pressure to the High Needs 
Block (HNB) of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), which provides the revenue 
funding for all specialist places. This budget is under significant pressure at the 
current time and additional places are required within the maintained and 
academy estate to mitigate against this particular issue. It is forecast that the 
HNB of the DSG will overspend by £3m in the 2021/22 financial year; 

Page 11



 

4.9 Revenue funding from the HNB of the DSG in the amount of £320,000 (for the 
initial 10 students) has been agreed as the base funding for the proposed new 
‘Connected Offer’. Had these same 10 students been placed in independent or 
out of county provision it would have cost the HNB £762,000 in total to educate 
same 10 students in the 2021/22 academic year. This proposal can therefore 
be considered to represent a cost avoidance benefit to the HNB of the DSG 
£442,000 for the 2021/22 academic year. This cost avoidance benefit will 
increase in future academic years as the ‘Connected Offer’ grows in size; 
 

4.10 The ‘Four Seasons’ building which will provide the site for the proposed 
‘Connected Offer’ provision is a former Day Centre for elderly people owned by 
NNC, located in School Lane, Kettering. The building has already been leased 
to the Creating Tomorrow Academy Trust for delivery of the proposed new 
provision. The building needs significant refurbishment to make it suitable to 
accommodate an education provision for students with additional needs. Works 
required include; 

 Refurbishment and redecoration of all internal areas; 

 Works to increase robustness of the structure to ensure suitability for cohort of 
students that will attend the provision i.e. window replacement; 

 Reconfiguration and redecoration of all toilet facilities; 

 Replacement of end of life Mechanical & Engineering elements of the building; 

 Refurbishment of existing Café/Kitchen area; 

 Works to provide a secure perimeter and access to the building; 
 
4.11 The anticipated cost of these works is £531,886, however, £50,000 was 

previously committed to this scheme by Northamptonshire County Council and 
remains unspent, so this request for expenditure equates to £481,886 in new 
funding; 
 

4.12 All works will be funded from SEND Capital Grant funding that was allocated to 
Northamptonshire County Council for the 2020/21 financial year. This funding 
was provided specifically to NNC’s predecessor organisation for the provision 
of ‘new or improved’ SEND places and is ring-fenced for this purpose. NNC has 
more than sufficient SEND Capital Grant funding available to it for the delivery 
of this scheme; 
 

4.13 It is estimated that the construction programme for the proposed works will take 
approximately 12 weeks once a contract has been awarded for the works. 

 
5. Issues and Choices 

 
5.1 This proposal relates to the fulfilment of NNC’s statutory obligations in respect 

of the provision of a sufficiency of SEND places in North Northamptonshire. 
Taking no action would have represented a clear and immediate risk to these 
statutory obligations and resulted in an increased pressure of the HNB of the 
DSG as identified in section 4.9 of this report and was therefore not a viable 
option; 
 

5.2 The provision of a stand-alone building at Isebrook SEND College was 
considered, however, this was discounted due to restrictions in the physical 
space on the school site and as a building located on an operational school site 

Page 12



would not meet the individual needs of this cohort of students. Further site 
searches were conducted in the town of Kettering but no other suitable site was 
identified as being suitable from either a physical or financial perspective; 
 

5.3 The current proposal will realise the following benefits and can be considered to 
represent the best choice for the provision of new secondary SEND places in 
the Kettering area of North Northamptonshire at the present time; 

 The proposed provision will provide 20 new secondary SEND places to assist 
NNC fulfil its statutory obligations; 

 The proposed provision will provide a bespoke new provision to meet the 
individual needs of a new and growing cohort of students in the area that is not 
currently available and is expected to increase the life chances of the students 
that attend the provision; 

 The proposal represents a cost avoidance benefit to the HNB of the DSG of 
£442,000 in its first year of operation, which can be expected to approximately 
double from its second year onwards. This cost avoidance benefit will repay the 
capital outlay for the scheme in 16 months. 

 
 

6. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
6.1 Resources and Financial 

 
6.1.1 This scheme will require approval of £481,886 for its progression (in addition to 

the £50,000 that was approved by NNC’s predecessor organisation for this 
purpose). As per section 4.12 of this report, the scheme will be 100% funded by 
SEND Capital Grant funding received from central government for this purpose; 
 

6.1.2 The proposed new unit will require revenue funding for its operation from the 
2021/22 academic year onwards from the HNB of the DSG. The proposal will 
receive £320,000 of revenue funding in its first year of operation which will 
double from the second year as the ‘Connected Offer’ will double its capacity. 
However, the proposal represents a substantial cost avoidance benefit as 
identified in section 4.9 of this report; 
 

6.1.3 This construction works related to this scheme will be project managed by 
colleagues within NNC’s Capital Projects Team and sufficient resource is 
available within the team for this purpose. 

 
6.2 Legal  

 
6.2.1 There are no legal implications arising from this proposal.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



6.3 Risk  
 
a) Risk(s) associated with the proposal 

 

Risk Mitigation Residual 

Risk 

Costs higher than 

available budget 

All works to be procured through NNC 

procurement frameworks or with three 

quotes to be obtained to ensure best value 

is achieved. Sufficient SEND Capital Grant 

available for delivery of scheme. 

Green 

Covid-19 impacts upon 

delivery of schemes  

Timeframes for delivery arranged in full 

accordance with the school and in full 

compliance with all government advice 

Green 

 
 
b) Risk(s) associated with not undertaking the proposal 

 

Risk Risk Rating 

NNC fails to fulfil its statutory obligation of providing a 

sufficiency of secondary school SEND places. 

Red 

The cohort of students that will attend the proposed new 

provision do not attend a setting that is best placed to meet 

their individual needs and they do not realise their potential.  

Red 

NNC does not realise the cost avoidance benefits that the 

proposal would deliver and additional pressure on the HNB of 

the DSG is realised. 

Red 

 
6.4 Consultation  

 
6.4.1 No statutory consultation process is required in relation to this proposal. 
 
6.5 Consideration by Scrutiny 

 
6.5.1 None. 
 
6.6 Climate Impact 

 
6.6.1 The refurbishment and replacement of end of life Mechanical & Engineering 

elements within the ‘Four Seasons’ building, in addition to the replacement of 
windows on site, will ensure that the building is far more energy efficient than it 
is at present; 
 

6.6.2 The provision of an increased number of secondary SEND places within the 
Kettering area will ensure that students attending the new provision will not be 
required to travel to independent or out of county provisions located further from 

Page 14



their place of residence. This reduction in journey times can be considered to 
be a positive climate impact. 
 

6.7 Community Impact 
 

6.7.1 If approved, this proposal will create a bespoke educational provision designed 
to cater towards the individual needs of a new and growing cohort of students 
within North Northamptonshire and one that will benefit all future students that 
attend this provision. This proposal will have a positive impact upon the SEND 
community within the area.  

 
7. Background Papers 

 
7.1 None. 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



                                    

 

 
 
 

EXECUTIVE  
 26th AUGUST 2021 

 

 

Key Decision  ☒ Yes    ☐ No 

Forward Plan Reference (if yes to Key Decision)    

Is the decision eligible for call-in by Scrutiny?  ☒ Yes    ☐ No 

Are there public sector equality duty implications?   ☒ Yes    ☐ No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information 
(whether in appendices or not)?  

☐ Yes    ☒ No 

Applicable paragraph number for exemption from publication 
under Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1974  

  

 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Science Block plan; 
Appendix B – Dining Facility plan; 
Appendix C – DT Courtyard plan; 
Appendix D – Accessibility Lift plan. 
 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
1.1. To provide Members with all the necessary information to make a fully informed 

decision on whether to passport banked Section 106 funding, that names 
Montsaye Academy as beneficiary, for use on a capital improvement scheme to 
improve the educational facilities at the school. 

 
2. Executive Summary 

 
2.1 North Northamptonshire Council (NNC) is currently in receipt of £606,446 of 

banked Section 106 developer contributions that name Montsaye Academy as 
beneficiary; 
 

2.2 NNC Officers have worked in conjunction with Pathfinder Schools Academy 
Trust (the Trust which operates Montsaye Academy) to produce plans that will 
improve the standard of accommodation at, and the educational environment 

Report Title 
 

Improvement of facilities at Montsaye Academy, Rothwell, 
using banked Section 106 funding 

Report Author Chris Wickens, Head of School Place Planning – 
Chris.Wickens@northnorthants.gov.uk 

Executive Member Cllr Scott Edwards, Executive Member for Children, 
Families, Education and Skills 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



provided by Montsaye Academy. These works will benefit all current and future 
students that will attend the school; 

 
2.3 These plans will also act as facilitating works for a future increase in the 

Published Admission Number (PAN) from 240 to 270 places per year group and 
provide 150 new secondary school places in total. These wider extension works 
will be completed when further new housing has been delivered in the area and 
future S106 contributions have been received; 
 

2.4 Should this funding request not be approved, in excess of 60% of the banked 
S106 contributions will ‘expire’ in June 2022 and would be returned to the 
relevant housing developer at this point. This funding needs to be utilised by 
June 2022 to realise the benefit for Montsaye Academy and its students.  

 
3. Recommendations 

 
3.1 It is recommended that the Executive:  

 
a) Approve the release of £606,446 of Section 106 contributions for 

Montsaye Academy; 
 

b) Approve the delivery of the project by Pathfinder Schools Academy Trust; 
 

c) Delegate authority to the Executive Member for Children, Families, 
Education and Skills in consultation with the Director of Children’s 
Services to enter into a Funding Agreement between North 
Northamptonshire Council and Pathfinder Schools Academy Trust for the 
delivery of planned improvement works. 

 
3.2 Reason for Recommendations – 

 The recommended course of action will allow the timely progression of 
capital improvement works at Montsaye Academy that are required to 
improve the educational environment for students and staff; 

 The recommended course of action will benefit students currently being 
educated at Montsaye Academy; 

 The Council (or customers) will receive the maximum benefit from the 
option proposed and Montsaye Academy will be able to derive the full 
benefit of the banked S106 contributions. 
 
 

4. Report Background 

 
4.1 North Northamptonshire Council (NNC) has, or is due to receive, Section 106 

developer contributions specifically towards secondary education at Montsaye 
Academy. In total there are seven different developments, where the Section 
106 agreements identifies Montsaye Academy as the beneficiary of these 
contributions. For the purpose of clarity, this funding cannot be used at any other 
school; 
 

4.2 In total, the Section 106 agreements stipulate that the funding which equates to 
£2.6m (plus indexation) in total will be received by NNC. However, this request 
relates only to S106 contributions that have been received and banked by NNC. 

Page 18



At present a total of £606,446 has been received from the three completed 
developments identified below;  

 KE/00/0119, Jubilee Street, Rothwell; 

 KET/2012/0528, Land off Harborough Road, Desborough; 

 KET/2012/0780 Harrington Road, Desborough; 
 
4.3 To ensure that the maximum benefit can be derived from this funding for 

students currently being educated at Montsaye Academy, it is proposed that 
works at the school be delivered in a phased manner as and when funding is 
received by NNC;  
 

4.4 The proposed works are required to improve the standard of accommodation 
available at Montsaye Academy. The main aim of the proposed works is to 
ensure that the school has the ability to effectively deliver the Science curriculum 
to current and future students that attend the school and also improve the 
school’s safeguarding arrangements in terms of access to the school site. A full 
list of the proposed works can be found in section 4.5 of this report. 
 

4.5 A feasibility study and detailed design has been commissioned and completed 
by the Pathfinder Schools Academy Trust (the Trust who operate the school). 
These design works identified the following works to be progressed as a matter 
of priority during the ‘Phase 1’ tranche of works:  

 Refurbishment of existing Science Block: The current Science facilities 
at Montsaye Academy are old are no longer fit for purpose in terms of 
delivering the current national curriculum to students. The existing 
accommodation will be completely refurbished and new equipment 
provided within to address this issue;   

 Extension of dining facilities: To allow the school to address what has 
become a significant ‘pinch point’ in terms of student circulation and to 
facilitate an increase to the school’s PAN in the future; ·  

 Installation of new pedestrian and vehicular access gate: To improve the 
safeguarding arrangements at the school and to make access to the 
school site more secure;  

 Miscellaneous works: To improve student circulation around the school 
site and to address various accessibility issues in parts of the school 
(replacement lift). 

 

4.6 The ‘Phase 1’ works can also be considered as enabling works to allow a future 
increase in its PAN from 240 to 270 places per year group, once future S106 
contributions have been received from area housing developments to fund the 
rest of the required works; 
 

4.7 The proposed expenditure of £606,446 for the works identified above, was 
approved at NNC’s ‘Strategic Capital Board’ on 9th August 2021. The total cost 
of the works will be £628,000, however, NNC’s total commitment will be 
£606,446 and the Academy Trust will provide the rest of the funding for 
completion of the proposed scheme.  

 
5. Issues and Choices 

 
5.1 The only other option available in respect of this proposal is for NNC to hold the 

S106 funding already received until all developer contributions have been 

Page 19



received and to deliver the planned Phase 1 works as part as a wider project. 
However, this would mean current students at the school would not benefit from 
the improved facilities and would continue to be taught in a sub-standard 
environment; 
 

5.2 The proposed works will be fully funded using banked S106 contributions that 
name Montsaye Academy as the beneficiary of said contributions, they cannot 
be legally utilised anywhere else. Should the decision be taken to delay the 
planned works there is a risk that the previously banked contributions would 
‘expire’ and have to be returned to the relevant housing developer. In excess of 
60% of the currently banked S106 contributions will expire in June 2022 and this 
funding must be utilised before this date; 
 

5.3 Any funding pass-ported to the Academy Trust that operate the school would 
be underpinned by a Funding Agreement that would limit NNC’s financial liability 
to the total amount of banked S106 contributions only and assigns all financial 
risk over and above this value to the Academy Trust delivering the works. This 
is standard practice when NNC has provided funding for capital works to be 
delivered by an Academy Trust in the past; 

 

 
6. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
6.1 Resources and Financial 

 
6.1.1 Total capital contributions of £606,446 have been invoiced and received by 

NNC.  
 

6.1.2 For the purpose of clarity, the S106 agreements that will provide the funding in 
question name Montsaye Academy as the beneficiary of the funding and it 
cannot be used by NNC for any other purpose; 
 

6.1.3 There are no other resources or financial implications arising from this proposal. 
The project will be delivered by the Academy Trust and supported and 
monitored by Officers within the School Place Planning Team at nil cost to NNC.  

 
6.2 Legal  

 
6.2.1 This proposal would have limited legal implications for NNC, the pass-porting of 

any funding would be underpinned by a ‘Funding Agreement’. This agreement 
will clearly set out the roles and responsibilities of all parties and identify for 
which purpose the funding may be utilised; 
 

6.2.2 There are no other legal implications arising from the proposals. 
 
6.3 Risk  
 
6.3.1 There is no risk to NNC associated with the delivery of this project; the Funding 

Agreement that will underpin the delivery of the proposed scheme will limit 
NNC’s financial liability in respect of this scheme to the value of the banked 
S106 contributions only. The Funding Agreement allocates all risk associated 
with delivery of the scheme to Pathfinder Schools. 
 

Page 20



6.3.2 The biggest risk associated with the proposed scheme would arise from any 
decision not to approve this proposal and funding request. In excess of 60% of 
the banked S106 contributions that form the funding stream for these proposed 
works are due to expire in June 2022. If this funding has not been used by this 
date it would be returned to the housing developer who made the original 
contribution and it could then not be used for the benefit of current and future 
students attending Montsaye Academy.  

 
6.4 Consultation  

 
6.4.1 The decision to approve expenditure of S106 funding received would be the 

decision of NNC and is not subject to any statutory consultation process. As 
such, there is no requirement for any consultation on the matter to have been 
conducted. 
  

6.5 Consideration by Scrutiny 
 

6.5.1 None. 
 
6.6 Climate Impact 

 
6.6.1 Any construction works at Montsaye Academy would have a limited climate 

impact, which will be managed via the relevant planning process;  
 

6.6.2 The request to passport the funding itself to Montsaye Academy has no direct 
climate impact. 

 
6.7 Community Impact 

 
6.7.1 This proposal can be considered to have a positive impact upon on both 

students that currently attend Montsaye Academy or will do in the future by 
providing access to improved educational facilities. 
 

6.7.2 The planned ‘Phase 1’ tranche of works that this funding request relates to, can 
also be considered facilitating works for a future increase in Montsaye 
Academy’s PAN from 240 to 270 places and will provide 150 new secondary 
school places in the future. As such, this proposal will have a further positive 
community impact as it will help provide sufficient secondary school places in 
this area of North Northants in the future. 

 
7. Background Papers 

 
7.1 None. 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Science Prep

Science S6

Science S5

A A

duct

duct

duct duct
duct

duct

mh

Corridor S5 S6

radiator

1

1 1

1

1

1

C

C T1S SS

S

S

DSC1

T1

CR

B

1

1

1

1 1

1

C

C

T1

S

S

S

S

D

S

C1

T2

B

S

S
CR

E

E

C Science Office

BB

7
6

5

4
3

1
2

14

15
16 9

10
11

1213

8

Prep  SM2

Boys Toilet

C
or

rid
or

Corridor

Office

Girls Toilet

Plant

Science Lab

Science/Math
Classroom

Corridor

Science Lab

Corridor

Corridor

Stairs

1

2

3

5

6

7

8

4

9

10

11

12

13

Maths Classroom

14

Science Lab

Office

Admin

Public Entrance

Corridor

Site
Manager

Store

Store E8

Pupil Entrance

Reception
Counter

Stairs

Reception Lobby

Pupil Entrance

Admin

Stairs

MI
Tea

Store

Science Lab

Science Prep

Office
Boys Toilet

Changing

Science Lab

Corridor

Corridor

Lift

Science SM1

Prep  SM1

Science S6
Old suspended ceiling
Vinyl sheet floor

Science SM8
vinyl floor
fibreboard ceiling

Science S5

 existing heater

ra
di

at
or

ra
di

at
or ex

g.
 ra

di
at

or

exg. radiator

D

E

K K K K K K K

B

D D

E
D D

K K K K K K KKKK

Ceiling light fitting

7526

10
70

9

11116

70
48

47
10

7215

5310

1905

24
25

whiteboard

A A

duct

duct

duct

vinyl floor tiles
suspended ceiling

sh
el

vi
ng

cupbd
over

pinboard

pinboard

pinboard

fume
cupbd

whiteboard pinboard

cu
pb

oa
rd

s 
ov

er

shelvingshelving

pi
nb

oa
rd

ductduct

ductradiator

radiator

mh

Corridor S5 S6
vinyl floor    suspended ceiling

radiator

ceiling hatch

whiteboard

bo
xi

ng
 a

t L
L

ex
g.

 ra
di

at
or

ex
g.

 ra
di

at
or

waste
pipe drain

pinboardpinboardpinboard

pi
nb

oa
rd

sh
el

vi
ng

Science SM7
vinyl tile floor
fibre board ceiling

be
am

be
am

be
am

B B

be
am

be
am

be
am

black out blinds black out blinds

bl
ac

k 
ou

t b
lin

ds
bl

ac
k 

ou
t b

lin
ds

Store SM8
vinyl tile floor
modern suspended ceiling

shelving

C C

black out blinds
black out blinds

bl
ac

k 
ou

t b
lin

ds
bl

ac
k 

ou
t b

lin
ds

E

D D

bl
ac

k 
ou

t b
lin

ds
bl

ac
k 

ou
t b

lin
ds

bl
ac

k 
ou

t b
lin

ds

black out
blinds

E

Tea

Store

Lift

waste
pipe drain

B BScience SM7

1

1

C

S

DSC1

1

1

1

C T1S S

S

S

T1

T2

1

CR

B

B

B

Science Lab

Science SM8

Store SM8

C C

D D

1

1 1

1

1

1
CR

C

C

T

T1T1 S S

S

S

S

S

DSC1

New
suspended
ceiling

B

1

C C1

B

B

4362

Science Lab S8

Science Lab S7

Science Lab S7

Science Lab S6

Science Lab S5

Project

Drawing

Revisions

Client

Revision

Date

Drawing No.

Scale

Drawn

59 York Road Northampton NN1 5QL                        Telephone:(01604) 633155  

Chartered Architects

E mail: enquiries@swbarchitects.co.uk

             CDM Principal Designer

Web: www.stimpsonwaltonbond.com

Science S5

KEY PLAN

Science S6 Science S7 Science S8

Science S5 Science S6

Science S7 Science S8

2019/58/210

April 2021

AR

1/100@A1Science Laboratories

Montsaye Academy

Feasibility II - Improvements

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



New tensile fabric steel
framed canopy

New steps up

New
retaining
wall

New steps up New steps up New steps up

New flagstone area
and benching

Dining Room

Existing Terrace

Project

Drawing

Client

Revision

Date

Drawing No.

Scale

Drawn

59 York Road Northampton NN1 5QL                        Telephone:(01604) 633155  

Chartered Architects

E mail: enquiries@swbarchitect.co.uk

             CDM Principal Designer

Web: www.stimpsonwaltonbond.com

2019/58/211

April 2021

AR

1/100@A1Dining Room Terrace Extension

Montsaye Academy

Feasibility II - Improvements

Examples of canopy

Photos As Existing

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



R/L R/L

R/LR/L

R/L
R/L

bench seating

New landscape
planting areas

New resin paving

New flagstone area
and benching

New resin paving

Relay paving slab to
lower perimeter

New retained sleeper
wall structure to
extended paved area

New tensile fabric steel
framed canopy

New tensile fabric steel
framed canopy

Project

Drawing

Client

Revision

Date

Drawing No.

Scale

Drawn

59 York Road Northampton NN1 5QL                        Telephone:(01604) 633155  

Chartered Architects

E mail: enquiries@swbarchitect.co.uk

             CDM Principal Designer

Web: www.stimpsonwaltonbond.com

2019/58/113

April 2021

AR

1/100@A1DT Courtyard

Montsaye Academy

Feasibility II - Improvements

Examples of canopy types

Photos As Existing

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



107
STAIRS

108
CORRIDOR

109
CLASSROOM

110
ST

111
CLASSROOM

112
ST

113
CLASSROOM

114
CLASSROOM

115
ST

116
STAIRS

119
RESOURCES 118

CLASSROOM
120
ST

121
CLASSROOM

122
ST

124
STORE

125
CLASSROOM

127
COMPUTER SUITE

128
STORE

129
PRACTICE OFFICE

130
BUSINESS STUDIES

131
CORRIDOR

132
DUCT

149
STORE

LIFT

Classroom and area above suspended ceiling

Staircase in main teaching block

April 2021
59 York Road Northampton NN1 5QL                        Telephone:(01604) 633155  DateDrawn Scale
Chartered Architects

E mail: enquiries@swbarchitects.co.uk       Web: www.stimpsonwaltonbond.com

             CDM Principal Designer

Drawing No

1/150@A3

2019/58/310

Rev

Montsaye Academy
Feasibility II - Improvements
Second Floor Clasrooms, Staircases and Lift

ASR

Refurbish existing Teaching areas in yellow Refurbish existing staircase from
ground to second floor

Refurbish existing staircase from
ground to second floor

Replace lift from ground to second
floor

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

North Northamptonshire Council 
 

1 AUGUST 2021 TO 30 NOVEMBER 2021 

 
 

  
Published by: Democratic Services 

 
Leader of North Northamptonshire Council: Councillor Jason Smithers 

 
 
 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 8



INTRODUCTION 
 
This is the North Northamptonshire Council’s Forward Plan.  It is published pursuant to The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.  Its purpose is to provide the required 28 days notice of the Council’s intention 
to take ‘key decisions’ and to hold meetings or parts of meetings in private.  It gives advance notice of all the “key decisions” and “exempt 
decisions” which the Executive or another body or officer so authorised are likely to take over a four month period.  The Plan is updated on a 
rolling monthly basis. 
 

The Members of the Executive are: 
 

Councillor Jason Smithers Leader of North Northamptonshire Council 
 

Councillor Helen Howell Deputy Leader of North Northamptonshire Council 
Sport, Leisure, Culture and Tourism 

Councillor Helen Harrison Adults, Health and Wellbeing 

Councillor Scott Edwards Children, Families, Education and Skills 

Councillor Harriet Pentland Climate and Green Environment 

Councillor Lloyd Bunday Finance and Transformation 

Councillor Steven North Growth and Regeneration 

Councillor Graham Lawman Highways, Travel and Assets 

Councillor Andy Mercer Housing and Community 

Councillor David Howes Rural Communities and Localism 

 
The concept of a “key decision” is intended to capture the most important or significant decisions. “Key decisions” will normally be made at 
meetings open to the press and public.  The press and public will only be excluded from such meetings as and when the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer considers that this is necessary in order to avoid the public disclosure of confidential or exempt information. 
 
The authority has decided that a Key Decision is one which is likely:- 

(a) to result in the authority incurring expenditure of which is, or the making of savings which are, significant; or  
(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more electoral wards in the area 

of the authority.” 
 
 The Council has decided that significant expenditure or savings are those amounting to above £500,000. 
 
In determining the meaning of “significant” for these purposes North Northamptonshire Council will also have regard to any guidance for the time 
being issued by the Secretary of State in accordance with section 9Q of the Local Government Act 2000. 
 

P
age 32



At times it may be necessary for the North Northamptonshire Council to give consideration to items where the public may be excluded from the 
meeting.  Members of the public are excluded from meetings whenever it is likely that, in the view of the nature of the business to be transacted 
or the nature of the proceedings that confidential information would be disclosed.  This includes exclusion from access to any pertinent 
documents.  Details of the exemption categories can be found in the ‘Access to Information Procedure Rules’ section in the Council’s 
Constitution.  This plan provides advance notice of any items which may be held in private. 
 
Paragraph 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 provides for 
members of the public to make representations to the Council on why an exempt item should be considered in public, rather than in private. 
Persons wishing to make such representations and/or obtain further details in respect of any issues referred to in the Plan should contact the 
undermentioned officer. 
 
The Monitoring Officer may also include in the Forward Plan references to such other decisions, which are to be taken by the Council or any of its 
Committees or Sub-Committee or officers as they consider appropriate. These will be those decisions that are considered to be significant or 
sufficiently important and/or sensitive so that it is reasonable for a member of the public to expect it to be recorded and published. 
 
All general questions or queries about the contents of this Forward Plan or about the arrangements for taking key decisions should be raised with 
Ben Smith, Democratic Services.   
 
Please email:  democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 33

https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=198&MId=507&Ver=4&Info=1&a=1
mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk


 

August 
 

Subject of the  
Decision: 

Decision Make Is it a key 
decision? 

Will it  
contain  
exempt  
information? 
/Reasons for  
exemption, if  
any  
 

Consultation  
undertaken 

Anticipated  
Date of  
Decision: 

Report Author Support  
documents (if  
any) 

Housing Land Supply in North 
Northamptonshire 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 5 Aug 2021 
 

  
 

Rough Sleeping Initiative 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 5 Aug 2021 
 

Kerry Purnell  
 

Extension to Shire Lodge 
Cemetery, Corby 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 5 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 

Kettering High Street Heritage 
Action Zone 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 5 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 

Two Form of Entry Primary 
School- Stanton Cross 
Sustainable Urban 
Development 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
Fully exempt 
 

 5 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Children's Services 

 
 

Hearndon Court Extra Care 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
Fully exempt 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Adults, Communities 
and Wellbeing 

 
 

Chester House Estate 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
Part exempt 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 
 
 

P
age 34



School Improvement Works - 
Montsaye Academy 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Children's Services 

 
 

Kettering Leisure 
Management Service 
Procurement 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

  
 

Provision of Annex Site to 
Isebrook SEND College 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Children's Services 

 
 

Lease at Arkwright Road and 
Baird Road 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
Part exempt 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 

Development at Stanton Cross 
- Farm Tenancy 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 

Litter Strategy 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 

North Northamptonshire 
Council Enforcement Policy 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 

Developer Contributions 
towards Education Facilities 
(Technical Update) 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 

Part 2 Local Plan for Corby 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 26 Aug 2021 
 

Executive Director - 
Place and Economy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



September 
 

Subject of the  
Decision: 

Decision Make Is it a key 
decision? 

Will it  
contain  
exempt  
information? 
/Reasons for  
exemption, if  
any  
 

Consultation  
undertaken 

Anticipated  
Date of  
Decision: 

Report Author Support  
documents (if  
any) 

Corporate Plan 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

 15 Jul 2021 
 
 
 

Chief Executive  
 

October 
 

There are currently no reports scheduled for October 
 
 

November 
 

There are currently no reports scheduled for November 

 

Items to be rescheduled to a future date/Date TBC 
 

Leisure Services - Covid 
Impacts 
 

Executive 
 

Yes No 
 
 

  
 

Executive Director - 
Adults, Communities 
and Wellbeing 

 
 

 

P
age 36



 

 

Forward List of Items for the Education, Skills and Employment EAP 

 

Decision/Item  Summary of Report  Report Author  Department  Exempt 
Item  

25 Aug 
2021  

29 Sept 
2021  

27 Oct 
2021  

24 Nov 
2021 

Standing Items                 

Forward Plan of 
Executive Items  

External Forward Plan  Ben Smith  Legal and 
Governance  

  
        

Forward List of Items for 
Education, Skills and 
Employment EAP  

Internal EAP Forward Plan of 
Items and Briefings  

Ben Smith  Legal and 
Governance  

  
        

Individual Items                 

The Corporate Plan  Consideration of 
the draft Corporate Plan and to 
make recommendations to the 
Executive  

Guy Holloway  Chief 
Executive’s  

         

Safeguarding in Schools 
Guidance Update 
 

  Children’s 
Services 

 
 

   

School Improvement 
Works 

School improvement works at 
Montsaye Academy using Section 
106 funding 

 Chris Wickens  
 

   

Provision of annex site to 
Isebrook SEND College 

Provision of an annex site to 
Isebrook SEND College at the 

 Chris Wickens  
 

   

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 9



 

Decision/Item  Summary of Report  Report Author  Department  Exempt 
Item  

25 Aug 
2021  

29 Sept 
2021  

27 Oct 
2021  

24 Nov 
2021 

‘Four Seasons’ building, 
Kettering. 

Virtual School Extended 
Duties  
 

    Children’s 
Services  

         

SEND  
 

    Children’s 
Services  

    
  

  
 

School Effectiveness   Children’s 
Services 

  
 

  

Changes to High needs 
funding 
 

  Children’s 
Services 

  
 

  

 

P
age 38


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 August 2021.
	6 Executive Item - Provision of Annex Site to Isebrook SEND College
	7 Executive Item - School Improvement Works - Montsaye Academy
	Appendix A - 2019-58 Feasibility II-210 Science Laboratories
	Sheets and Views
	114 Science Laboratories


	Appendix B - 2019-58 Feasibility II-211 Feasibility II Dining Terrace
	Sheets and Views
	211 Feasibility II Dining Terrace


	Appendix C - 2019-58 Feasibility II-113 Feasibility II DT Courtyard
	Sheets and Views
	113Feasibility II DT Courtyard


	Appendix D - 2019-58 Feasibility II-310  Classrooms Lift Stairs
	Sheets and Views
	310  Classrooms Lift Stairs



	8 Forward Plan of Executive Items
	9 Forward List of Items for Education, Skills and Employment EAP

